Minutes GPVA Business Meeting West End Library, Richmond 11 May 2019

16 MEMBERS AND 0 GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE:

(An asterisk * denotes a local representative.)

(Corresponding timestamps on the recording are listed in parentheses.)

Arlington: Kirit Mukherjee (treasurer)

At-Large: none

Blue Ridge: Charlie Jordan*

Fairfax: Dianne Blais* Jonah Thomas (webmaster) Fredericksburg: Sean Imanian*, Payton Lee, Robert Rose

Hampton Roads: Kyle Rockett*, Tina Rockett (co-chair), Bryce Davis (co-chair)

Loudoun (inactive): none

Lynchburg: B. Sidney Smith (Gen. Secretary)

New River Valley: Steven Gillespie*, Ryan Wesdock (Press Secretary)

Richmond: Scott Burger*

Shenandoah: Tom Yager*, Tamar Yager

Guests: none.

Meeting convened at 10:40 am

facilitator: Bryce Davis time-keeper: Tom Yager

vibes-watcher: Kirit Mukherjee

(4:35) Sid proposed adding to the agenda consideration of endorsement of the Pipeline Actions being organized for the next weekend. This was agreed to by consensus.

- (8:20) Charlie Jordan moved that any proposal in the agenda that lacks a sponsor be stricken from the agenda. This motion was defeated on a voice vote.
- (11:07) Tina Rockett proposed that discussion of endorsement of the Rage Against the War Machine demonstration be added if time permitted. This was agreed to by consensus.
- (12:45) Approval of the minutes of the previous meeting was agreed to by consensus.

REPORTS:

(13:20) Co-chairs: Bryce and Tina reported on their day at the Green New Deal Virginia (GNDVA) conference in Richmond. (Their written report is included by attachment, below.)

(23:25) Kirit gave the treasurer's report. There is \$1243 in the operating fund, and \$83 in the Federal PAC. In response to a question Kirit clarified why we have two accounts, and the purpose of each. He also recognized sustainers Tina Rockett and Jeff Staples, and a number of other significant donors.

(27:00) Jonah gave the webmaster's report. He noted that little work has been done so far, but he is learning the ropes.

(28:00) Sid gave the General Secretary's report. He noted that Shenandoah had reactivated with a recent meeting.

(29:00) Tina gave the National Delegates report. She noted that there is comparatively little to report, as there have been few proposals before the National Committee. She lamented that many people seemed to be leaving the party, and this was discouraging.

OLD BUSINESS:

CONFIRMATION OF INTERIM DECISIONS

(33:40) The cosponsorship of the Wisconsin proposal was agreed to by consensus. The appointment of Declan Mathis to the GPUS Green Pages Committee was agreed to by consensus. The appointment of Dianne Blais to the GPUS Peace Action Committee was agreed to by consensus.

REVIEW OF CANDIDATES AND CAMPAIGNS

(41:00) Sid Smith reported that Wendy Hageman Smith is running for reelection to Appomattox County School Board. Sean Imanian reported that Fredericksburg has a potential candidate for city council. Tina Rockett said she is weighing a run for city council in a special election in Virginia Beach. A long discussion ensued about the value of running candidates versus other forms of activism for building local parties.

PLATFORM COMMITTEE Proposal

(1:12:25) The proposal to amend the Bylaws, Article 13: Platform Committee procedures, was read and discussed. Charlie Jordan registered a blocking concern. The proposal passed, with 1 No, 1 Abstain, and 9 Yes. (Proposal attached below.)

(1:47:30) The (unwritten) proposal to establish a Political Response Team was discussed. Concerns about accountability and timeliness were aired. Steve Gillespie expressed concern that the scope of the PRT should be limited to reacting to situations with a short timeline, and not include things like a legislative liaison, campaign coordinator, etc, except as advisors. Tina and Sid said this is actually pretty close to what was originally proposed. Kirit said he thought it was important to set clear guidelines for the PRT's scope of activities. Scott Burger emphasized that we should be working to publish Green Party opinions on current issues. It was agreed that a formal proposal should be written for consideration at a future meeting.

(Lunch Break. Following times are in the second recording.)

NEW BUSINESS:

(00:35) The proposal to update the Bylaws, Para. 14.1.4, as taken up. Charlie Jordan objected that the newly adopted procedures to which the proposed change would conform are undemocratic. Ryan Wesdock raised a concern about fairness in elections in which an officer could vote for themselves. After further discussion, it was decided to amend the proposal by adding the additional sentence:

"Current officers may not vote in any officer election in which they are also a candidate." The proposal was then passed with 9 votes in favor, with the Treasurer and Blue Ridge the only votes against, and Shenandoah abstaining.

(25:30) The Code of Conduct and Ethics Committee proposals were introduced by Sid Smith, who talked about the reasons for these proposals coming forward, and then outlined the primary features of the proposals. Several members spoke in favor, emphasizing that they felt they were very needed. Charlie Jordan spoke against the proposals, on the basis that it would expand the power of the national party too much. The Code of Conduct passed with 11 votes in favor, with Blue Ridge voting against, and the Ethics Committee proposal passed with 10 votes in favor, with Blue Ridge voting against and the Treasurer abstaining.

(1:12) Endorsement of the Pipeline Actions taking place the weekend of May 18 were taken up. Steve Gillespie introduced the Actions and the pipelines issue, and the work of Emily Satterwhite who is organizing the weekend's events. Co-chair Tina Rockett said that we should not be official endorsers of actions with Democratic or corporate sponsorship unless we are offered a place at the table, a voice at the podium; however, in this instance, since it is grassroots, it makes sense to help promote it and to encourage Greens to participate. After further discussion, there was consensus to promote the events and encourage Greens to participate.

(1:27:20) The business portion of the meeting ended, and Tina Rockett gave a presentation to the members present on the 3.5% Rule.

The meeting was adjorned at 3:00 pm.

APPENDICES

Tina Rockett's report on the GNDVA conference:

The Green New Deal Virginia Summit was very interesting. I may have said too much (per usual) but I do feel like Bryce Davis and I planted quite a few Green seeds! Charles Brown (HRGP local) was also there representing Greenpeace and contributed excellent insights and led a working group on Reparations although I am not sure how many folks were aware he is also a Green.

I found it pretty unbelievable that not only did they co-opt our GNDino, they decorated the Summit with our international symbol, sunflowers! So I figured I would just consider it a favor that they called all those folks together to hear about the real GP GND and did all the work for us.;)

I gave out some of our GND packets, got signatures for Ranked Choice Voting and volunteered to lead the group on Democracy (election reform) where Bryce was also very helpful. We explained Ballot Image preservation and public audits (BIAs) and RCV and prioritized 4 areas: (BIAs); campaign finance reform - only public financing for all elections; end gerrymandering; and proportional representation for our short and long-term goals by 2030. I would like to add hand counted paper ballots and open debates in the future. The organizers had people sign up for different goal groups at the end and Bryce and I added our names to the Democracy group again as did others in our group. We had a young Sunrise Williamsburg Rep at our Democracy table who was very helpful and had excellent leadership skills. I asked her if she had known about the GP GND before the Dem GND and joining the Sunrise Movement and she said no. She seemed very appreciative when I gave her our GND packet

with the Stein/AOC comparison chart and explained about why a GND must include reducing the military.

Also, I had a lengthy conversation about the GP GND, RCV, BIAs, and the 3.5% Rule with a young lady at my table over lunch who recently gained citizenship and is unhappy with the Democratic Party. She said she is interested in seeing if she has a GP local near her and if not, starting one and running Green in the future! 3.5% here we come!

I also gave Del. Sam Rasoul our GND packet and information about BIAs - he already supports RCV. And he asked me to follow up by email with more info about BIAs which I will.

It was encouraging to actually be sought out by a few of the group reps. One person stopped me as I was leaving to tell me she agreed with a comment that I had made that when we already have a comprehensive GP GND, we should be moving ahead with that instead of trying to reinvent the wheel. This makes me even more eager about getting our PRT/GND Model Legislation team up and running!

Overall, I think it went well with little perceived hostility toward our GPVA representation. We'll see if there is any social media fallout and if we are invited back. ;)

I still do not believe we should legitimize their efforts to co-opt our Party and GND, sunflowers and all, by adding our name as a coalition member. If they were to offer partnership by crediting and implementing the GP GND and include us as speakers/organizers/authors of bills, that situation would then become something to consider - but I do not at all think that likely.

Imo, although I do not doubt the sincerity of the *grassroots members* of the GNDVA coalitions, this is a corporate sponsored Dem/Environmental NGO sheepdog event. Like Bernie, I give them credit for promoting the GP Platform and bringing it into the mainstream, but I curse them for their perpetuation of the System that is killing people and the climate everyday and will not save a habitable planet.

TEXTS OF PROPOSALS AS adopted

Proposal to Amend the GPVA Bylaws, Article 13: GPVA Platform and Platform Committee procedures

BACKGROUND: The GPVA Platform has not been properly updated in several years. This is evidence, at least, that the currently prescribed procedures are not effective at facilitating the updating of our platform. The Committee-Committee reviewed procedures from the GPUS platform committee as well as our old procedures, and sought input from several other members. The result is a completely new set of procedures which is intended to make our platform at once more accessible to the membership, more relevant to the public, more useful to our candidates, and more amenable to appropriate and timely updates.

PROPOSAL: Rename the current Article 13 of the GPVA Bylaws to "Platform and Platform Committee", and replace the current text with the following:

13.1 Structure and Organization of the Platform

- 13.1.1 The GPVA Platform shall be organized by the Four Pillars, with general headings under the most appropriate Pillar, and specific planks organized by subheadings under each heading.
- 13.1.2 Each plank shall be titled by its subheading. Below the title/subheading, each plank shall have a Short Statement, typically one or two sentences, concisely summarizing the plank.
- 13.1.3 Each plank shall have an Executive Summary, which may be a bulleted or numbered list, providing concise statements of each point within the plank.
- 13.1.4 Each plank shall have a Detailed Discussion, providing all appropriate rationales for the plank.
- 13.1.5 Each plank shall have a list of Resources following the detailed discussion. The resources, either documentary or electronic, should be such as support the rationales for the plank.
- 13.1.6 The platform shall be published on the GPVA website, formatted to facilitate both browsing of the plank statements and, by means of expanding sections, the summary, discussion, and references. The General Secretary shall be responsible for keeping the web page current.

13.2 Structure of the Platform Committee

- 13.2.1 The GPVA General Secretary shall be the convener of the Platform Committee.
- 13.2.2 Any GPVA member in good standing who is endorsed by their local may become a member of the Platform Committee.
- 13.2.3 The Platform Committee shall have two co-chairs, who shall be elected by and from among the committee membership for a term of one-year. No member shall serve more than two consecutive full-term appointments as co-chair.

13.3 Platform Committee procedures

- 13.3.1 At the beginning of autumn, the Platform Committee will establish a procedure for review by the committee of the current platform, for the purpose of identifying those planks that may need revision, and to determine if new planks are needed.
- 13.3.2 One week following the first Tuesday in November, the Platform Committee will issue a call to the general membership for platform proposals. This call will be accompanied by a form, or a link to a form, for the use of members to facilitate preparation of proposals in the correct format, in accordance with 13.4.
- 13.3.3 The Platform Committee will work with those making proposals to help them with preparation of a properly formatted proposal, and with editing for clarity, unity, etc.
- 13.3.4 The Platform Committee may request that submitters work together to combine proposals that are similar or competing.
- 13.3.5 Platform proposals may be submitted to the Platform Committee at any time. The Platform Committee shall endeavor to process each proposal in a timely manner.
- 13.3.6 Once the Platform Committee has determined, either by consensus or by majority vote, that a proposal meets the criteria of Para. 13.4, the proposal shall be forwarded to the GPVA co-chairs to be placed on the business agenda of a regular or interim business meeting. Adoption of a platform proposal is a major decision under the bylaws.
- 13.3.7 The Platform Committee may, on its own authority, make minor housekeeping changes to the Platform. These include correction of typos, grammatical errors, correction of dates or other neutral factual information, and so on. Such changes shall be detailed in the Platform Committee's report to the next business meeting, and are subject to approval by the membership.
- 13.3.8 It is the responsibility of the Platform Committee co-chairs to ensure that these procedures and all business of the committee are accomplished in a timely manner.

13.4 Platform Proposal Requirements.

- 13.4.1 Platform proposals must be submitted using the paper or online form specified by the Platform Committee in its most recent call for proposals.
- 13.4.2 Platform proposals must be limited to a single plank, or, if a revision of existing planks, must be limited to a changes corresponding to a single issue. Proposals affecting more than one narrowly construed issue should be split into separate proposals. The Platform Committee shall determine in each instance whether a proposal is too broad, and notify the proposing members of the requirement to split the proposal.
- 13.4.3 Proposals must have the formal endorsement of two locals, or be endorsed in writing by at least five GPVA members in good standing.
- 13.4.4 Proposals must be grammatical and well organized, use neutral, factual language, and must be specific. The Platform Committee will assist members making a proposal in meeting this requirement.
- 13.4.5 Proposals for minor, housekeeping edits to existing planks should be made informally to the Platform Committee, who will handle the edits in accordance with Para. 13.3.7.
- 13.4.6 Proposals may not duplicate existing planks in whole or in part, and may not contradict existing planks unless the proposal is specifically to amend the existing plank in such a way that the amended plank will not itself stand in contradiction to any other part of the platform.
- 13.4.7 A proposal to delete a plank without replacement should be made directly to the membership through the GPVA co-chairs, and not to the Platform Committee.
- 13.4.8 Any proposal meeting these requirements shall be accepted by the Platform Committee, and processed in accordance with Para 13.3.

Proposal to Amend the GPVA Bylaws, Section 14, Officers:

BACKGROUND: Two years ago the GPVA bylaws were amended to increase democratic representation at GPVA business meetings by requiring that major decisions be voted on by local representatives and elected state officers, rather than solely by "members present" at the meeting. This ensured that members could have input to decisions through their local representative without the onus of having to attend the meeting in person in order to have an equitable voice in major party decisions. However, the language of Section 14 was not properly updated to reflect this change. This proposal is a house-keeping proposal to bring the old language into consonance with the rest of the bylaws.

PROPOSAL:

Update Para. 14.1.4 to read in its entirety: Election of officers will take place by Ranked Choice Voting, and is considered a major decision under Section 10, "Meetings and Decision Making." Current officers may not vote in any officer election in which they are also a candidate.

Update Para. 14.1.5 to read in its entirety: Unscheduled officer vacancies may be filled by a Ranked Choice Vote of the Leadership Council at a regular GPVA business meeting or in an interim meeting. Announcement of the vacancy and a request for nominations must be made at least 28 days prior to the regular or interim meeting at which an election will take place. Elections conducted by an interim meeting of the Leadership Council will be subject to ratification at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the GPVA for which quorum has been established, by a simple majority vote of the Leadership Council members present.

Update Para. 14.1.6 to read in its entirety: An officer may be recalled for dereliciton, malfeasance, conduct in violation of the Four Pillars and 10 Key Values, or any conduct likely to cause harm to the Green Party of Virginia. A recall vote will be held whenever more than 50% of the locals announce, through their local representative, that a recall vote is needed. An officer will be considered recalled, effective immediately, when more than 2/3rds of the local representatives of all currently active locals vote in favor of recall at any regular meeting of the GPVA, or at an interim meeting called for the purpose of recall.

PROPOSAL (GPUS): Code of Conduct

Amend the GPUS Bylaws, Article VII, "Ethical Behavior", adding the following sub-paragraph:

1. Code of Conduct

A. Inclusiveness. The Green Party welcomes and supports people of all backgrounds and identities. No person shall be discriminated against, deliberately made to feel unwelcome, or disparaged on the basis of sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, race, ethnicity, culture, national origin, social and economic class, educational level, color, immigration status, sex, age, size, family status, religion, or mental or physical ability.

- B. Interpersonal behavior. The success of the Green Party depends on the enthusiasm, talents, cooperation, and hard work of each of its members. Because the things we say and do, and the decisions we make, affect us all, we are each obliged to treat every other member with respect, due deference, generosity, and consideration. Disparagement, exaggerated accusations, deliberate mischaracterizations, and deceptive framing are inconsistent with Green ethics. Expressing unproven assumptions (or suspicions) that a colleague's intentions are malevolent, or failing to give the benefit of the doubt, is counterproductive. When frustrations occur and tempers flare, we are obliged to step back and wait for passions to cool before re-engaging. The following are unacceptable: Threats of violence; discriminatory jokes or language; sharing sexually explicit or violent material via electronic devices or other means; personal insults, especially those using bigoted terms (racist, sexist, etc.); unwelcome sexual attention; vilification or backbiting; bullying, either individually or in cooperation with others, including excessive or unfair criticism, public insults, deliberate exclusion or ignoring, doxing or other public or private exposure to damage a reputation, and cyber-bullying; or advocating for, or encouraging, any of the above.
- C. Collegiality. Every member is an ambassador for the Green Party to the broader polity, and to the world. Members should refrain from publicly airing internal disagreements, and from publicly disparaging or denigrating the party or any of its members. Criticism of the party, where justified, should be constructive, and offered with the aim of improving the party and supporting its membership. Deliberately publishing polarizing or divisive commentary, or publicly condemning party members, damages the public standing of the party and imperils its mission, and is unacceptable.
- D. Professionalism. As Greens we place our trust in one another. To succeed, we must have both transparency and confidentiality. Leaders, committee members, delegates, and others in positions of responsibility should exemplify the highest standards of honesty and integrity. The following are unacceptable: betrayal of confidences entrusted in accordance with bylaws, policies, rules, or agreed procedures; offering or accepting bribes, whether monetary or for other consideration; theft, larceny,

extortion, blackmail, or any felony the commission of which involves the Green Party, its property, data, or members, except in the conduct of principled strategic acts of non-violent civil disobedience; acting or conspiring to subvert the procedures of any committee or the conduct of any internal election; misrepresentation of one's own or another's political commitments; infiltration on behalf of any outside interest; or maintenance of a conflict of interest without full disclosure.

BACKGROUND: The GPUS Bylaws, in Article VII, Ethical Standards, obliquely address ethical behavior on the part of Greens, but is largely written for state parties and is mostly about representation and structure. As a national political organization, especially one based on a deep commitment to ethical governance, we need a code of conduct for members to serve as a template for constructive behavior, and against which to measure complaints regarding conduct.

PROPOSAL (GPUS): Establish a GPUS Ethics Committee

PURPOSE:

To institute a committee and process for the just disposition of ethics violations by members of the Green Party of the United States, its delegates, officers, staff, committees, or official groups.

I. BACKGROUND:

In any organization of sufficient size, it will sometimes happen that a member of the organization, or a group of members possibly acting in an official capacity, will act in a way that violates the ethical standards of the organization. Such violations may be such as to incur either a civil or criminal legal response, but individual and/or official actions may also violate ethical standards without being legally actionable. In either case, the organization must have a process for identifying such behaviors and incidents, or reviewing allegations of them, and arriving at a disposition of the matter that is just to the parties concerned and shields the organization from liability or other further harm.

The GPUS presently has two committees with limited authority to procedurally address charges of wrongdoing made against its members. The Dispute Resolution Committee (DRC) "is charged with providing mediation and arbitration services for intra-party disputes." The DRC can seek to ascertain facts, contact parties, and seek resolution. However, the process is voluntary; if one or more parties to the dispute chooses not to participate, there is no process and no resolution. The Accreditation Committee (AC) "reviews and makes recommendations on requests to remove state parties or caucuses from accredited status." The AC has no authority to review allegations of violations by an individual or by any committee or other organizational group in the national party.

The lack of a formal procedure for addressing individual and internal institutional violations of GPUS ethical standards is a serious deficiency that must be addressed.

II. DEFINITIONS:

II.1. "Member" in this document refers to any person identified as a member or formal associate of the Green Party of the United States, either by membership in a constituent state party or caucus, or by assignment to a recognized committee, or by written or verbal contract.

- II.2. "Violation" refers to any action, including by speech, writing, voluntary association, or physical behavior, that violates the ethical standards or Code of Conduct set forth in the bylaws of the GPUS.
- II.3. "Legal action" refers to any process undertaken by individuals or by officials of any governmental jurisdiction in accordance with applicable civil and criminal codes.
- II.4. "Evidence" refers to any of the following: documents that can be independently verified, physical evidence that can be objectively examined, first-hand testimony that is credible and offered in good faith, or the recorded findings of a court of law.

III. COMMITTEE STRUCTURE:

- III.1 The GPUS Ethics Committee (EC) shall consist of 9 members, with no more than 2 members of any state party at any given time. Members of the Steering Committee may not simultaneously serve on the Ethics Committee.
- III.2 Members shall be elected by the National Committee for three-year terms, using Approval Voting, with three members elected each year. No member may serve more than two full terms consecutively.
- III.3 There will be three co-chairs chosen internally from among the elected EC members, by approval voting, to serve one-year terms. Co-Chair appointments should promote gender and racial diversity. Consecutive co-chair terms are permitted.
- III.4 Committee terms and co-chair terms shall be dated from January 1st. Special elections and/or appointments will be used in the event of an unscheduled vacancy. Interim appointments shall made only until the next scheduled election.
- III.5 The current Dispute Resolution Committee (DRC) will be reestablished as a subcommittee of the Ethics Committee, with the current DRC Administration (sub)Committee replaced by the Ethics Committee, and the Mediator and Arbiter Pool staffed by volunteers vetted and supervised by the EC.

COMMITTEE PROCEDURES:

- IV.1. The EC shall consider two types of complaints: those made against one or more individual members for their individual actions, and those made against committees or other official GPUS groups for procedural, systemic, or systematic violations.
- IV.2. Investigatory Phase.
- IV.2.a. Complaints may be made by any GPUS member to any EC member. EC Members must recuse themselves from consideration of, or any procedural activity with respect to, any complaint regarding themselves or their state party, or with respect to which they have any other evident conflict of interest.
- IV.2.b. When a complaint is received, it will be immediately forwarded to the EC co-chairs. If at least two co-chairs find the complaint actionable, they shall forward the complaint to the remaining members of the EC. If at least two additional members concur that the complaint is actionable, the complaint shall be processed according to the procedures set out in sub-paragraphs IV.2.d-j below.

IV.2.c. If the complaint is not deemed actionable, the complainant will be notified, and the complaint filed and kept for a period of at least three years. Complaints that are not actionable may nonetheless be referred to the Dispute Resolution Subcommittee (DRS) for mediation provided that (1) the complainant is interested in Dispute Resolution, and (2) in the opinion of at least 2 co-chairs or 4 EC members, mediation could be of value.

IV.2.d. Actionable complaints shall be assigned to a three-member Investigative Subcommittee (IS) of the EC, by consensus or by an approval vote of the EC members.

IV.2.e. The IS will create a confidential folder (i.e. "case file") of files to include the original complaint and any and all evidence and other materials subsequently obtained or created regarding the complaint.

IV.2.f. The IS will establish a list of persons to be contacted, queried, and or interviewed with respect to the complaint, and will make a detailed record of all such communications. The identity of the complainant will be kept confidential if the complainant requests. The individual(s) named in the complaint will be asked to provide a statement, and/or an interview with them may be requested, but all such responses are voluntary and may not be compelled. The IS will seek to obtain any and all evidence and other relevant information regarding the complaint, for the purpose of drawing up a Findings Document. The Findings Document will summarize the complaint, the facts obtained, and any conclusions that may be reasonably inferred from the facts.

IV.2.g. When the Findings Document is complete, it will be forwarded to the EC co-chairs, who will first determine whether to seek legal counsel. Legal counsel must be sought in any case where the findings indicate a violation of the law, or are such as to open the GPUS to liability for civil action. This includes but is not limited to cases of discrimination in employment, sexual or physical assault, misappropriation of funds or property, acts of larceny, vandalism, or any other violations of the law. If the co-chairs determine that legal advise should be sought, they will immediately notify the Steering Committee in a confidential communication.

IV.2.h. Whether legal counsel is sought or not, the co-chairs will then distribute the Findings Document to the full EC membership, who will also at this point be given access to the full case file. After a period not to exceed one week, the EC members shall vote for one of the following Findings: (1) a Finding that there has been an Ethics Violation, or (2) a Finding of no Ethics Violation. The vote shall be by open ballot, and recorded.

IV.2.i. If a simple majority of voting members fails to vote for a Finding of at least one Ethics Violation, the case file will be closed, and the complainant notified of the EC members decision. Closed case files are to be kept for a minimum of three years. At this point too the matter can be referred to the DRS, according to the procedure of Para. IV.2.c.

IV.2.j. If a simple majority of voting members votes for a Finding of an Ethics Violation, then the matter proceeds to the Recommendations Phase.

IV.3. Recommendation Phase.

IV.3.a. Once a Finding of one or more Ethics Violations has been made by the full EC, the case file is assigned to a new three-member Recommendation Subcommittee (RS) of the EC appointed by consensus or by approval voting from among the 6 members who were not on the Investigative Subcommittee for the case.

IV.3.b. The RS will evaluate the Findings Document and determine which specific types of violations identified in the GPUS Code of Conduct were committed, by whom they were committed, how many times each type of violation was committed, and for each violation whether the violation could be characterized as (1) a minor violation or (2) a significant violation, and whether either mitigating factors or aggravating factors were present. This analysis will be recorded in tabular form.

IV.3.c. For violations by one or more individuals, the RS will formulate a Recommendation for Sanctions for each such individual, to include one or more from among the following:

- 1. Recommendation of formal censure.
- 2. Recommendation of placement on moderated status on specified GPUS list-serves for a designated period, or permanently.
- 3. Recommendation of removal from (all or specified) GPUS list-serves for a designated period, or permanently.
- 2. Recommendation of removal from (all or specified) GPUS committee assignments for a designated period, or permanently.
- 5. Recommendation of revocation of delegate status (including alternate) to the GPUS NC for a designated period, or permanently.
- 3. Recommendation of disallowing attendance at (all or specified) GPUS events for a designated period, or permanently.

IV.3.d. For violations by a committee or other organizational element of the GPUS, the RS will formulate a Recommendation for Reconciliation to include one or more of the following:

- 1. Recommendation of a specific change in membership, such as replacement or removal of named individuals.
- 2. Recommendation of a specific change in leadership, such as by new internal elections or other appropriate means.
- 3. Recommendation of a change in rules, procedures, or bylaws to address and prevent future violations.
- 4. Recommendation of removal of a committee or other organizational element from the GPUS structure.

The Recommendation for Sanctions and/or Reconciliation will include a rationale based on the Findings Document, attendant circumstances, and the potential for continuing or repeated violations.

IV.3.e. The completed Recommendation will be sent to the entire EC, which will discuss the Recommendation and attempt to reach consensus about it, possibly including friendly amendments. If consensus cannot be reached, then the Recommendation as presented by the RS will be voted on. The vote will be by open ballot, and recorded.

IV.3.f. If no Recommendation is agreed to either by consensus or by a simple majority vote, then the case file will be closed, the complainant notified, and the Recommendation, Findings Document, and case file kept for a period of at least three years.

IV.3.g. If a Recommendation is agreed to either by consensus or by vote, then the Recommendation, Findings Document, and case file will be forwarded to the Steering Committee, who will schedule the

Recommendation as a formal proposal for the National Committee, with a normal discussion and voting period.

V.4. Reopening Complaints

V.4.a. A complaint that was closed within the preceding three years may be reopened if:

- 1. New evidence is presented to the EC which, in the opinion of at least two of the co-chairs or four of the EC members, warrants reevaluation of the complaint.
- 2. A complaint is made against the same individual(s) or GPUS organizational element (e.g., committee) for a similar but otherwise entirely new violation which is itself deemed actionable in accordance with Para. IV.
- V.4.b. A complaint will not be reopened on the basis of a new complaint of violation if the alleged new violation is not similar to or related to the closed complaint.
- V.5.c. A complaint that has been reopened for one of the reasons above will be processed anew in accordance with Section IV of this document.
- V.5.d. A reopened complaint may be considered on its own, or combined with a new complaint if appropriate.
